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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SOUZAN AOUROUT, on behalf of

herself and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
V.
PEPSICO, INC.,
| Defendant.

CV14-1289 Ll (f

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

VIOLATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA

| UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW, CAL.

BUS. & PROF. CODE §$ 17200 ET.
SEQ.;

VIOLATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA
FALSE ADVERTISING LAW, CAL.
BUS. & PROF. CODE §§ 17500 ET,
SEQ.;

AND
VIOLATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA
CONSUMER LEGAL REMEDIES
ACT, CAL. CIV. CODE §§ 1750 ET.
SEQ.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

™~

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiff SOUZAN AOUROUT, by and through undersigned counsel, on
behalf of herself and all other persons and entities similarly situated, sues
Defendant, PEPSICO, INC. (“Pepsi”), and for her Complaint alleges, upon
information and belief and based on the investigation to date of her counsel, as
follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. From at least J anuary 7, 2012 through the present (also referred to as
the “Class Period”), Pepsi has sold the soft drink Pepsi One (the “Product” of
“Pepsi One”) throughout the state of California, During all relevant times, the

Product contained a significant amount of 4-methy1imidazole (4-MEI).

consumers that Pepsi One contains significant levels of 4-MFEL.

3. 4-MEI is a chemical, designated by the State of California as a
carcinogen. It is an impurity generated during the manufacture of caramel colors

I and IV, which are used in some soft drinks including Pepsi One.

4. Under California’s Proposition 65, Health & Safety Code § 25249.5

et seq., it is unlawful for businesses to knowingly and intentionally expose

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
2

2. Throughout the Class Period, Pepsi systematically failed to disclose to - -
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individuals in California to chemicals known to the State to cause cancer without
providing clear and reasonable warnings to individuals prior to their exposure,

5. Préposition 65 enables Californians to make informed deéisions in
their selection of food and beverage, among other, products.

6. Notwithstanding Proposition 65, Pepsi introduced the Product into thel
State of California with significant quantities of 4-MEI, and dia so without
disclosing the presence of the known carcinogen or the hazards associated with
exposure to the chemical, as statutorily required by -Proposition 65. See Health &
Safety § 25249.6. | |

7. Pepsi’s conduct harms consumers by inducing them to purchase and
consume a product without critical information and disclosures required by

California 1aw.

~ 8 ~Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of herself and a class of
California consumers to challenge Defendant’s failure to disclose the presence of a
recognized carcinogen in the Product under California’s Unfair Competition Law,
False Advertising L.aw, and Consumer Legal Remedies Act.

0. Plaintiff seeks an order compelling Defendant to (1) cease marke‘tiné
the Product using the misleading tactics complained of herein, (2) conduct a
corrective advertising calﬁpaign, (3) restore the amounts by which Defendant has

been unjustly enriched, and (4) destroy all misleading and deceptive materials.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
3
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10. This Court has jurisdiction over all causes of action asserted herein.

11, Jurisdiction is proper in this court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d),
because there are at least 100 class members in the proposed Class, the combined
claims of proposed class members exceed $5,000,000 exclusive of interest and
costs, and at least one class member is a citizen of a state other than Defendant’s
state of 'citizenship.
12. Plaintiff will likely have full evidentiary support for the jurisdictional
allegations after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery
regarding Defendant’s sales of Pepsi One during the Class Period.
13. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) because a substantial

part of the events giving rise to the claims asserted herein occurred in this District)

(through the promotion, sale, and marketing of Pepsi One in this District.

substantial business in this District, has sufficient minimum contacts with thig

District, and otherwise purposely avails itself of the markets in this District,

14, Defendant and other out-of-state participants can be brought beforg

this Court pursuant to state and federal law.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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Venue-is-proper-pursuant to 28 U.8.C." § 1391(c) because Defendant conducty
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- PARTIES

15.  Plaintiff Souzan Aourout is a resident of Los Angeles County,
California. Plaintiff regularly purchases and consumes Pepsi One. Throughout the
Class Period, she purchaséd and cbnsumed the Product at least twice a week,
including in cans, 12-o0z. bottles, and 2 liter bottles. She purchased the Product
from Ralphs in Encino, California and from other locations throughout California.

16.  Plaintiff would not have purchased the Product if she knew it
contained a substance known to the State of California to be a carcinogen. Ms.
Aourout was injured in fact and lost money as a result of Pepsi’s omissions
because she was induced to purchase Pepsi One without critical information
concerning the Product.

17.  Pepsi is a North Carolina company with its principle place of

business at 700 Ande;sion Hill Road, Purchase, New York 10577,
18.  Pepsi is a person in the course of doing business within the meaning
of Health & Safety Code § 252249.11. Pepsi manufactures, distributes, or sells

the Product for sale or use in California.

BACKGROUND

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
5
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19.  The State of California (the “State” or “California”) has declared that
consumers have the right “[t]o-be informed about exposures to chemicals that

cause cancer, birth defects, or other reproductive harm.” Proposition 65, § 1(b).

20.  To advance this goal, Proposition 65 prohibits exposing individuals
to chemicals listed by the State as known to cause cancer, birth defects, or other
reproductive harm without a “clear and reasonable warning” unless the business
responsible for the exposure can prove that it fits within a statutory exemption.

Health & Safety Code § 25249.6 states in relevant part:

No person in the course of doing business shall knowingly and intentionally
expose any individual to a chemical known to the state to cause cancer or
reproductive toxicity without first giving clear and reasonable warning to
such individual . . .

21.  On January 7, 2011, California officially listed 4-MEI as a chemical

known o cause cancer. 27 Cal. Code Regs. (“C.(E.ili;’w’r)7§72’700I(b).

22.  In making this listing determination, the California Environmental
Protection Agency’s Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment credited
the U.S. Natidnal Toxicology Program as an “authoritative body” under 27 C.C R.
§ 25306, citing to that agency’s 2007 findings. regarding the carcinogenic

properties of 4-MEL

! There are four principal ways for a chemical to be added to the Proposition 65 list: (1) if eithér
of the Carcinogen Identification Committee (“CIC”) and the Development and Reproductive

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
6
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23. OnJ anuary 7, 2012, one year after it was listed as a chemical known
to cause cancer, 4-MFI became subject to a clear and reasonable warning
requirement regarding carcinogens under Proposition 65. 27 C.C.R. § 27001(b);

Health & Safety Code § 25249.10(b).

24.  Specifically 4-MEI was added to the list of chemicals with specific
regulatory levels under section 25703(b)(1) of Title 27, Cal. Code Regs. This
section makes it mandatory for businesses to include a warning for exposures to 4-

MEI of more than 29 micrograms per day.

25, According to Urvashi Rangan, a toxicologist and Executive Director
of the Consumer Reports Food Safety & Sustainability Center, “There is no ‘safe’

level of 4-MEI, but if you have to set a threshold, it should be well below the

| Proposition 65 level (29 micrograms/day) —and-more like-3 micrograms/day.” |

Rangan calls exposure to 4-MEI “an unnecessary risk.”

26.  According to testing petformed by Consumer Reports, from April

2013 to September 2013, Pepsi One sold in California contained an average 43.5

Toxicant (“DART”) of scientists and health professionals finds that the chemical has been
clearly shown to cause cancer or birth defects or other reproductive harm. In making their
decision, the committees base their decisions on the most current scientific information
available; (2) if an organization designated as an “authoritative body” by the CIC or DART
Identification Committee has identified it as causing cancer or birth defects or other reproductive
harm; (3) if an agency of the state or federal government requires that it be labeled or identified
as causing cancer or birth defects or other reproductive harm e.g., prescription drugs; and (4) if
chemicals meet certain scientific criteria and are identified in the California Labor Code as
causing cancer or birth defects or other reproductive harm.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
7




[0 O VS

=B =+ B I S

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28

Case3:14-cv-01105-WHO Documentl Filed02/20/14 Page8 of 35

micrograms of 4-MEI per 12 ounce can, and during December 2013, Pepsi One
sold in California contained an average of 39.5 micrograms of 4-MEI per can.

Pepsi labels its 12 ounce cans as containing a single serving.

27.  No “clear and reasonable warnings” were provided by Defendant

with Pepsi One to alert consumers to the inclusion of 4-MEI in the Product.
Pepsi’s Unlawful Practices

28. Pepsi deceptively promotes Pepsi One without the disclosure

required by Proposition 65 that it contains a known carcinogen.

29.  Pepsi understands that consumer perception of foods and beverages

affects purchasing decisions and consumption,

- -—30. _Pepsi_ realizes-that.consumers - are - increasingly —aware —of- the-
relationship between their health and diet and that consumers demand products

that do not expose them to known carcinogens.

31.  Pepsi is also aware that with ever growing interest and intensity,
consumers today seek out consumer products that are healthy and do not contain
carcinogenic chemicals. To do so, consumers carefully consult the labels of

consumable products for their informational content.

32, Thus, consumers depend on manufacturer labels to truthfully inform

them of the nature of the foods and beverages they purchase. Rather than

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
8
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conveying a truthful message that Pepsi One contains a level of 4-MEI that the
State of California recognizes as known to cause cancer, Pepsi instead deceptively
rnarkets Pepsi One by failing to provide the mandatory disclosure regarding the

presence of 4-MEI in the beverage.

33.  As a result of Pepsi’s deception, consumers are left with the false
belief that Pepsi One is a soft drink that does not contain a chemical that is known
to cause cancer. Due to their false belief about the nature of Pepsi One,

consumers arc willing to purchase the beverage.

34. In advertising and selling Pepsi One, Pepsi has and continues to

deceptively omit that this soft drink contains 4-MEL

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

'35, Plaintiff brlngs ‘this action on her own behalf and as a Class ACthIl
Pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Plaintiff seeks
certification of the following Class:

California Class: All Persons in the State of California who
purchased Pepsi One during the Class Period.

36. The abundance of Class Members renders joinder of all Class

members individually, in one action or otherwise, impractical.

37. Asto all Class members, there are common questions of law and fact,

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
' 9
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{ ||the resolution of which will, in turn drive the resolution of the litigation. These
2 |[common questions predominate over questions affecting only individual Class
3 . .
members including:
4
5 (a) whether the Product contains 4-MEI and the amount thereof}
6 (b) whether the Product labelling violates Proposition 65;
7
(¢) whether information concerning the amount of 4-MFEI in the Product is
o :
9 material to a reasonable consumer;
10 (d) whether Pepsi had a duty to disclose the facts concerning 4-MEI in the
11
Product;
12
13 (e) whether Pepsi concealed from Plaintiff and other class members that the
14 Product contains levels of 4-MFI that warrant disclosure;
15
() whether Defendant’s practices are unlawful; :
16 B ] B - I
17 (g)whether Defendant violated the California Civil Code Section 1750 ef :
18 seq.;
19 .
(h)whether Defendant violated the California Business & Professions Code
20 _ ,
21 Section 17200 et seq.;
22 (i) whether Defendant violated the False Advertising Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof,
23 |
o Code Section 17500 ef segq.; and
25 (j) whether Plaintiff and class members sustained damages and, if so, the
26 proper measure of damages, restitution, equitable or other relief, and the
27 ‘
- amount and nature of such relief.
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
10




Case3:14-cv-01105-WHO Documentl Filed02/20/14 Pagell of 35

Excluded from the Class is: (a) any Judge or Magistrate presiding over this action|
and members of their families; (b) Defendant and any entity in which Defendant
has a controlling interest or which has a controlling interest in Defendant and itg
legal representatives, assigns and successors of Defendant; and (c) all persons who
properly execute and file a timely request for exclusion from the Class.

38. The members in the proposed class are so numerous that individual
Jjoinder of all members is impracticable, and the disposition of the claims of all
class members in a single action will provide substantial benefits to the parties and
Court,

39.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of Class members’ claims in that they
arc based on the same underlying facts, events, and circumstances relating to

Pepsi’s conduct.

40.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately répreéent an& protect th;interests
of the Class, has no interests incompatible with the interests of the Class, and has
retained counsel competent and experienced in consumer fraud class action
litigation. Hence there is no genuine reason to doubt that Plaintiff will vigorously
prosecute this litigation on behalf of absent Class members. Plaintiff and her
counsel will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class. |

41. The class is sufficiently large for purposes of class litigation because
it contains at least hundreds of thousands of members who purchased the Product

in the state of California during the Class Period.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
11
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42.  The class action mechanism is superior to other available means for
the fair and efficient adjudication of the claims of all Class members. Besides the
predominance of questions common to all Class members, individual Class
members lack the resources to undertake the burden and expense of individual
prosecution of these claims against a well-financed corporate Defendant such as
Pepsi, especially in comparison with the maximum individual recovery to which
each Class rhember would be entitled. Individualized litigation increases the delay
and expense to all parties and multiplies the burden on the judicial system
presented by the complex legal and factual issues of this case. It also presents a
potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments. In contrast, the Class action
device presents far fewer management difficulties and provides the benefits of a

single adjudication, economy of scale, and comprehensive supervision by a single

court on the issue of Pepsi’s liability.

CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNTI1I
Violation of California Business and Professions
Code § 17200 ef seq.
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Class Against Defendant)

43, Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as if fully restated

44.  Plamtiff asserts this claim individually and on behalf of the Class.

' CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
12
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45. Defendant is subject to the California Unfair Cémpetition Law
(“UCL”), Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 ef seq. The UCL provides in pertinent
part: “Unfair Competition shall mean and include unlawful, unfair or fraudulent
business practices and unfair, deceptive, untrue or misleading advertising[.]” Cal.
Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200.

~46. A business act or practice is “unlawful” if it violates any established

state or federal law.

47. Defendant engaged in unlawful conduct by violating California’s
Health & Safety Code § 25249.11.

48. 4-MEI is a chemical recognized by the State of California as known
to cause cancer.

49. As a result of Pepsi’s placement of Pepsi One in the stream of

commerce, Pepsi is a person in the course of doing business within the meaning of
Health & Safety Code § 25249.11.

50.  Pepsi knows that the Product contains 4-MEI. Pepsi intends that the

Product be used in a manner that results in consumers consuming the Product first |

by purchasing it, then by drinking it.
51.  Pepsi has failed and continues to fail to provide clear and reasonable
disclosures to consumers regarding the presence in and use of 4-MEI in Pepsi

One.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
13
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52. By committing the acts alleged above, Pepsi has at all relevant times
violated Proposition 65 by knowingly and intentionally exposing Californi&
consumers to 4-MEI without first giving “clear and reasonable warnings”
regarding the presence of 4-MEI a known carcinogen.

53. Throughout the Class Period, Pepsi engaged in acts of unfair
competition, as defined by Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, by failing to provide
-disclosures in connection with the sale of fhe Product as described above.

54.  Pepsi’s deceptive omission of the amount of 4-MEI in the Product is
a “fraudulent” practice within the meaning of the UCL in that the omission is
likely to deceive reasonable consumers and the public.

55.  Plaintiff and the Class would not have purchased the Product had

they known about the deceptive omissions discussed above.

56, In accordance with Cal, BltlSi & Prof. (iéde §Wi7203, i’léintiff seeks
an Order enjoining Pepsi from continuing to conduct business through fraudulent
acts and practices, and to commence a corrective advertising campaign.

57.  On behalf of herself and the Class, Plaintiff also seeks an Order for
the restitution of all monies from the sales of the Product, which were unjustly
acquired through acts of fraudulent competition.

58.  On behalf of herself and the Class, Plaintiff also seeks interest at the

highest rate allowed by law and the payment of Plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees and

costs pursuant to, inter alia, the California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
14
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COUNT II
Violation of California Legal Remedies Act
Cal. Civ. Code § 1750 ef seq.
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Class Against Defendant)
59.  Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as if fully restated

herein.

60. Plaintiff asserts this claim individually and on behalf of the Class.

61. This cause of action is brought pursuant to California’s Consumers
Legal Remedies Act, Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, et. seq (the “CLRA”).

62. .Plaintiff is a consumer as defined by the CLRA.

63.  Pepsi is a supplier or seller ag defined by the CLRA.

64. The Pepsi One that Plaintiff and other members of the Class

purchased from Pepsi were “goods” within the meaning of Cal. Civ. Code §

1761(a).
65. Pepsi’s conduct described herein involves consumer transactions as
defined in CLRA.
66.  Plaintiff is further given the rights to bring the suit herself under Civ,
Code § 1780 and on behalf of the class under § 1781.
67. Pepsi has engaged in deceptive practices, unlawful methods of

competition, and or unfair acts as defined by Civ. Code § 1750, et seq. to the

detriment of the Plaintiff, members of the general public and the Class. Plaintiff]

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
15
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the general public and members of the Class have suffered harm as a proximate
result of the wrongful conduct of Pepsi as alleged herein.

68. Pepsi intentionally, knowingly and unlawfully perpetrated a harm
upon Plaintiff by the above-described facts.

69. Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(5) prohibits one who is involved in a
transaction from “[r]epresenting that goods or services have sponsorship, approval,
characteristics, ingredients; uses, benefits, or quantities which they do not have.”
Pepsi violated this provision by failing to make disclosures relating to the fact that
4-MEl is ooﬁtained in Pepsi One at levels that require disclosure.

70.  Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(7) prohibits one who is involved in a
transaction from “[r]epresenting that gobds or services are of a particular, standard,

quality, or grade or that goods are of a particular style or model, if they are

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

another.” PeI;si violglfed this proviéioﬁ by failing fo malgciar diéclosures relating to
the fact that 4-MEI is contained in Pepsi One at levels that require disclosure.

71.  Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(9) prqhibits one who is involved in a
transaction from “[a]dvertising goods or services with intent not to sell them as
advertised.” Pepsi violated this provision by failing to make disclosures relating to
the fact that 4-MEI is contained in Pepsi One at levels that require disclosure.

72.  Accordingly, Pepsi violated the CLRA by engaging in the practices
proscribed by the California Consumer Legal Remedies Act, § 1770(a) and in

consumer transactions with the Plaintiff and the Class, which were intended to

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
16
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result in, and did result in the sale of the Product to the Plaintiff and the Putative
Class.

73.  Pepsi’s policies and practices are unlawful, unethical, oppressive,
fraudulent and malicious. The gravity of the harm to all consumers and to the
general public from Pepsi’s policies and practices far outweighs any purported
utility those_ policies and practices have.

74.  Pursuant to CLRA §1780(a), Plaintiff seeks an order enjoining Pepsi
from engaging in the methods, acts, or practices alleged herein,

75.  Pursuant to CLRA §1782, if Pepsi does not rectify its conduct within
30 days, Plaintiff intends to amend this Complaint to add claims for:

a) Actual damages;

b) Restitution of money to Plaintiff, the Class members and the general

¢) Punitive damages;
d) Attorneys’ fees and costs; and

¢} Other relief that this Court deems proper.

COUNT 11
Violation of the False Advertising Law, Business and Professions
Code Sections 17500 ef seq.
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Class Against Defendant)

76.  Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as if fully restated

herein.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
17
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77.  Plaintiff asserts this claim individually and on behalf of the Class.

78. The California False Advertising Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §
17500 makes it “unlawful for any person to make or disseminate or cause to be
made or disseminated before the public in this state, ... In any advertising device .
.. Oor iﬁ any other manner or means’whatever, . . . any statement concerning . . .
personal propérty or services, professional or otherwise, or performance or
disposition thereof, which is untrue or misleading and which is known, or which
by the exercise of reasonable care should be known, to be untrue or misleading.”

79.  Throughout the Class- Period, Pepsi committed acts of false
advertising as defined by Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, by deceptively omitting
that the Product contains 4-MEI at levels that require disclosure.

80.  Pepsi’s deceptive omissions were likely to deceive reasonable

consuiﬁérs and thé publicr:i as they deceptiixifelry representéd the quality and nature of
the ingredients used in the Product.

81. Pepsi knew, or reasonably should have known, that it was
deceptively omitting material information.

82.  Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to injunctive and cquitable relief
and restitution.

83.  Plaintiff and the Class would not have purchased Pepsi One had they
known about the deceptive omissions discussed above.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
18
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favor against the Defendant, as follows:

a. A determination that this action may proceed as a class action and that

. An Order requiring Defendant to bear the cost of class notice;

. A return of all amounts paid for Pepsi One sold by the Defendant to the

. For interest thereon, in the maximum amount allowable under applicabld

. For costs of suit, in the maximum amount allowable under applicable law;

. For an award of attorneys’ fees and costs, to the maximum amount permitted

Case3:14-cv-01105-WHO Documentl Filed02/20/14 Pagel9 of 35

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff and the Class Members demand judgment in their

Plaintiff adequately represents the Class;

Plaintiff and the Class Members;

law;

undeér applicable law;

. For injunctive relief, restraining and enjoining the Defendant from

. For an order of restitution and all other forms of equitable monetary relief;

continuing to use these deceptive sales tactics;

and

For such other and further relief for the Plaintiff and Class as this Honorable

Court shall deem just.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
19
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Plaintiff and the Class demand trial by jury as to all matters and issues

triable.

DATED: February 19, 2014

Jonat Shub (SBN 237708)

Scott Alak George (Pro Hac Vice
Application Forthcoming

Parvin K. Aminolroaya (Pro Hac Vice
Application Forthcoming)

SEEGER WEISS LLP

1515 Market Street, Suite 1380
Philadelphia, PA 19102

Phone: (215) 564-2300

Fax: (215) 851-8029

_jshub@seegerweiss.com

sgeorge(@seegerweiss.com
paminolroaya@seegerweiss.com

Alyson Oliver

(Pro Hac Vice Application
Forthcoming)

Nick Suciu III

(Pro Hac Vice Application
Forthcoming)

OLIVER LAW GROUP PC
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Jeffrey A. Leon (Pro Hac Vice
Application Forthcoming)
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Suite 300

Highland Park, Illinois 60035
Telephone: (847) 433-4500
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Jonathan N. Shub (SBN 237708)
SEEGER WEISS LLP

1515 Market Street, Suite 1380
Philadelphia, PA 19102

Phone: (215) 564-2300

Fax: (215) 851-8029
jshub@seegerweiss.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Souzan Aourout, and on Behalf
of All Others Similarly Situated

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SOUZAN AOUROQUT, on behalf of herself
and all others similarly situated,

AFFIDAVIT OF PLAINTIFF SOUZAN AOUROQUT
PAGE NO. 1

Plaintiff, CASE NO.:
V. AFFIDAVIT OF PLAINTIFF
e o SOUZAN -AOUROUT |
PEPSICO, INC,,

Defendant,
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I, Souzan Aourout, submit this affidavit pursnant to § 1780(c) of the

Consumer Legal Remedies Act and declare the following:

1.  Iam aresident of Los Angeles County, California, and the named Plaintif#

and class representative in the above-titled action.

2.  Los Angeles County, California is the county where the transaction at issue
in this action occurred, as I purchased the product Pepsi One from Defendant from

Ralph’s located at 17480 Ventura Blvd. Encino, CA 91316.

3.  Because both the fransaction at issue and a substantial portion of eventT
giving rise to this cause of action occurred within Los Angeles County, California,
it is my understanding through my attorney that this action has been commenced in|

the proper place for the trial of this action.

Further affiant sayeth not.

AFFIDAVIT OF PLAINTIFF SOUZAN ACUROUT
PAGE NO. 2
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I declare under penalty of perjury that the above and foregoing
belief.

Dated: 2111y Signed: Y

Souzan Aourout

I, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby affirm that

appeared before me on the ___ day of Febrt

Aourout personally
2014, and signed the above

Seehttached  9//2(¢
California Jurat ¢ #

Notary Public

AFFIDAVIT OF PLAINTIEF SQUZAN AQUROUT
PAGENO.3
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CALIFORNIA JURAT

State of California
County of - £os Base fer

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this /#¥*~
| dayof __Febiruary 2074, by _

" Souzau Oowrauf i
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
personﬂyf who appeared before me,

VIVIAN &, PATEL
Commizsion # 1838898
Notary Public - Calflornia
Los Angelas Counly

OPTIONAL

' o & RSN e

Thovugh the frdormation balow is not redquired by faw, # ray prove valie Tap of thurh herg

able to persons relying on ihe document and- could parevent fraiaiutent 1
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THIS IS A REPRINTED RECEIPT

get real
{low prices}

e >

. ..... 17840 Ventura.Blvd.
..... (B18).345-6R82
.....YOUR CASHIER WAS.SELF . CHECKOUT

........ PEPSI.COLA............ .4.99.B
veeoo  CA.REDEM.VAL............ 0.60.B
.RALPHS . rewards . CUSTOMER. . . x¥8x8 420706
B 1 SN ...0.50
Loommiek BALANCE. ... ... ... ...6.09

703 .Ralphs . 16

17840 . Ventura. Blvd.
.Encina.CR.91316
YISA.Purchase

AxEAXREEAAK 6338

TOTAL: .6.09

REF#:.511143

........ VISR, .....ovvivinvirns..B.09
........ CHANGE...... ...........0.00

TOTAL . NUMBER . OF . ITEHS.SGLD. =, .. .2
02/11/14.01:37pm. 6.84.50.999

REXRERRRREERRRHERRTHRA RSN RN NA NN
veess . WOH,FUEL .POINTS!

. .Farn 50.80NUS .FUEL . POTNTS. for
ahar ing, your . Feedbauk  sboul . yuis . visit

...PLUS . enter.for.a chance. to.win
.ONE.af . 100. - .$100. 91 f1 . cards.or the
....%5,000 gift.card.orand. prize!

..... Go. {o.wwu. krogerfeedback . comn
........ in the.next.7.days.and
..... enler. the. infarmat ton,belaw:

Date:.02/11/14

Time:,01:37pm
Entry.ID:703-464-50-6-84-134
ALimit.one .50, point . bonus per T.daus,
.. No.purchase. . necessary to. entee

sweepstakes . See.website For offieial
sweepstakes.rules.

........... PR EES TR ETER R R T 3 2
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SEEGERWEISSwur

77 Water Street, New York, NY 10065 P 212.584.0700 F272.584.0799  www.sgegerweiss com

February 19, 2014

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Pepsico, Inc.
700 Anderson Hill Road
Purchase, New York 10577

Re:  Demand Letter Pursuant to California Civil Code § 1782
To whom it may concern:

This letter serves as a preliminary notice and demand for corrective action by Pepsico,
Inc. (“Pepsi™) pursuant to the provisions of California Civil Code § 1782, on behalf of our client,
Souzan Aourout, and all other persons similarly situated.

Pepsi has sold and continues to sell the soft drink, Pepsi One (“Pepsi One” or the
“Product”™), without disclosing to consumers that the Product contains significant levels of 4-
methylimidazole (“4-MEI™), as required by California’s Proposition 65, Health & Safety Code §
25249.5, et seq.

Pepsi has uniformly and deceptively promoted Pepsi One without the disclosure required
by Proposition 65. Pepsi has and continues to deceive consumers to induce them to purchase
Pepsi One, taking away market share from its competitors and increasing its own profits.

Ms. Aourout is a citizen of the State of California and a consumer as defined in
California Civil Code § 1761(d) in that she purchased Pepsi One “for personal, family or
household purposes.” From at least January 7, 2012 to the present, Ms. Aourout purchased Pepsi
One at least twice a week. The Pepsi One purchased by Ms. Aourout did not contain a clear and
reasonable warning regarding the 4-MEI contained in the Product. Ms. Aourout purchased Pepsi
One from Ralphs in Encino, California and other retail stores in the state of California.

Ms. Aourout suffered a loss of money as a result of Pepsi’s omission in the amount of the
purchase price of the Pepsi One that she purchased.

By failing to provide a clear and reasonable warning concerning the 4-MEI in Pepsi One,
Pepsi violated numerous provisions of California law including the Consumers Legal Remedies
Act, Civil Code § 1770, including but not limited to subsections (a)5), (7}, and (9), California’s
Unfair Competition Law (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 ef seq.,) and California’s False
Advertising Law (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500 ef seq.)

New York Newark Philadelphia Los Angeles
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Pepsico, Inc.
February 19, 2014
Page -2-

We hereby demand that Pepsi immediately (1} cease and desist from further sales of
Pepsi One in the state of California that do not contain a clear and reasonable warning regarding :
the 4-MEI in the Product, (2) conduct a corrective advertising campaign; (3) make full restitution |
to all purchasers of Pepsi One in the state of California of all money obtained from sales thereof; e
and (4) destroy all misleading and deceptive materials relating to Pepsi’s failure to disclose the
level of 4-MEI in the Product. ;

It is further demanded that Pepsi preserve all documents and other evidence which refer
or relate to any of the above-described practices including, but not limited to, the following:

1. All documents concerning product development and production of Pepsi One;

2. All communications with the Food and Drug Administration, and the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency concerning the level of 4-MEI in Pepsi One;

3. All documents concerning the advertisement, marketing or sale of Pepsi One; and
4, All communications with customers concerning the level of 4-MEI in Pepsi One,

Please comply with this demand within 30 days from receipt of this letter.

We are willing to negotiate with Pepsi to attempt to resolve the demands asserted in this
letter. If Pepsi wishes to enter into such discussions, please contact me immediately.

Sincerely,

/s Jonathan Shub
Jonathan Shub
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L. {a) PLAINTIEFS ( Check box If you are representing yourself [:] }

SOUZAN AQUROUT, on behalf of herself
and afl others simblarly situated

PERSICO, INC.

DEFENDANTS

( Check box if you are representing yoursesf [ ] )

{b) County of Residence of First Listed Plalntiff Los Angeles
(EXCEPT IN LLS, PLAINTIFF CASES}

{IN U5, PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant  Westchester, NY

(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address and Telephone Nurmber) If you are

representing yourself, provide the same information,

See Attached

Attorneys (Firm Name, Address dnd Telephone Number) If you are
represénting yourself, provide the sami information.

il. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an X in.one bex only.)

1.U.5. Government
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T 2.5, Government
Defendant

3. Fedetal Quastion (U.5.
Government Not a Party)
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of Parties in irem I}
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False Advertising; 28 U.5.C. § 1332
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[ OTHERSTATUTES | - CONTRACT = | REAL PROPERTYCONT.| . " IMMIGRATION PRISONER PETITIONS BROPERTY RIGHT:
[ 375 False Claims Act ] 110 nsurance [ 240 Torts to Lland ] ‘462 Naturalization HabeasCorpust (] 820Copyrights
* 4% Tort Prod Application e .
400 State 1 120 Marine l ort Product [] 463 AlienDetainee |11 230 parent
C Reapportionment Liahility ) y
4685 Other [l 510 Mutlans to Vacate
[} 410 Antitrust [ 130 Miller Act [ 290 All Gther Real L] Immigration Actions | ! Sentence - [] 840 Trademark

] 430 Banks.and Banking

] 450 Commaeyce/ICC
Rates/Etc.

[} 480 Deportation

O 470 Racketeer Influ
anced & Corrupt Org,

[ 480 Consumer Credit
490 Cable/Sat TV

850 Securities/Com-
rodities/Exchange

880 Other Statutory
Actions

891 Agricultural Acts

893 Environmental
Matters

B95 Freedom of Info.
Act

7] 896 Arbifratian

0O

OO0

899 Admin, Procedures
[™] Act/Review of Appeal of
Agency Decisfon

1 140 Negotlable
i:j Instrument
g) 50 Recovery cg‘
verpayment
i:] Enforcerent of
Judgment

] 151 Medicare Act

152 Racovery of
[} Defaulted Student
Loan (Excl. Vet)

153 Recovery of.
Overpayment of
Vet. Benefits

m 160 StockHolders'
Suits
190 Qther
O Contract

| 185 Contract
Product Lizbility

7] 196 Franchise

Propeny_ _

BT,
o)

ER

=1 370 Other Fraud

F7 310 Arplane
[J Broducs by
0 Slancier

C1 Tiabiliy

7} 340 Marine

Injury

Product Liability

[ REALPRGFERTY _

367 Heaith Care/

[] 210 Land
Candemnation
[ 220 Boreciosure

Pharmaceutical
Persanal Iniry
Product Llabitity

O
a0
O
0 Med Malpratice
[d
[
[

320 Assault, Libel &

330 Fed, Employers'

345 Matine Product
1

. 362 Parsonal injury-

365 Parsonal Injury-

380 Other Personal
Property Damage

Product Liabilky

1] 530 General

¥o|[] 535 Death Pemalty

SOCIAL SECURITY

Others -

371 Trath in Lending

385 Property Damage

SBANRRUFTCY.

[ 540 Mandamus/Other
[T} ss0ciit Rights
555 Prison Condition

560 Civil Detaines
I} Conditions of
Catifinenyent

[T 867 HIA (1365%
1] 862 Black Lung (923)
[ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405 (o))
(] 864 SSiD Title Vi
[] 865 RS) (405 (g}

-: -FEDERALTAX SUITS

FORFEITURE/PENALTY .

625 Drug Related
LI sefzure of Property 21
UsC 881

[] 590 Other

Uability
4235 Withdrawal 28
350 Matar Vehicle USC 157
355 Motor Vehitle VL RIGHTS -
Product Liability . “HL R[‘Gl"l’ljﬁ_
360 Other Pefsonal 440 Other Civl] Rights

£l
.
=
Sk
n
0
O

441 Vating.

7] #42 Eraplayment

0 443 Housing/
Aecommadations
445 American with

[] Disabilitles-
Employment

m 446 Araerican with

LABGH

[] 710 Fair Labor Standards
Act

] T20 Labor/Mgmt,
Relations

] 740 Raitway Labor Act

731 Faraily and Medical
(W Laave Act

. 790 Other Labar
|

P ! isabilit . Litigatlon
950 Constitutionality of y 368 Asbestos Disabilities-Otlver
L] te St ] 230 Rent Lease & Persanal Inju "] - 791 Employee Ret, Tne.
State Statutes Electment Product Li;blg,tv 448 Education ] Securlsy Act

870 Taxes (LL.5, Plaintiff or
Defendant)

| 871 IRS<Third Party 26 USC

o089

FOR GFPICE USE OMLY:

Case Numbe

e

LY-71{11/130

CIVIE COVER SHEET




Case3:14-cv-01105-WHO Documentl Filed02/20/14 Page30 of 35

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

VHI. VENUE: Your answers ta the questions below will determine the division of the Court to which this case will mast likely be intiatly assigned, This Initial astignment:

CIVIL COVER SHEET

is subject to change, i acesrdarice with the Court's General Orders, upon review by the Court of yous Complaint or Notice of Removal.

Question A: Wax this case ramoved from | STATE CASE WAS PENDING N THE COUNTY OF. 7 7
state court? s L

] Yes Ne (™ Los Angeles Wastern
If "o, " go to Question B, i "yes," check the ] Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Lids- Obispo Western
box to the right that applies, enter the o
corresponding division in response to ] Orange Southern
Question 0, below, and skip to Section iX, 3

[ Riverside or 5an Bernardino astam

Question B: Is the Unitad States, or one of
its agencies ot employess, a party to this.

action?

[ Yes No

"o, " go ta Guestion C. I 'yes," check the |[] Les Angeles

box to the right that applies, enter the
leorresponding divisien Th response to ] Obispo

Question [, below, and skipto Sectlon X,

] Los Angeles” Western

Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luls O Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luls Western
Cblspo

[] orange [[] Orange Soutthern

[[] Riverside orSan Bernardino [] Riversice or San Bernardine Eastern

™7 wther ] Other Western

[ndicate the location in whichz.
| majority of plaintiffs reside:

malority of defendants reslde:

Indicate the location in which a [:“] [:]

Indicate the location in which a

maority of claims aroser

L
OO
OO|o

S

C.1. Is-either of the following true? If so, checkthe ong that applies:

[:] 2 ormore answers Ih Column C

[7] only 1 answer o Columsa Cand no answers in Colurmn D

Your tase will Inftially be assigned to the
SOUTHERN DIVISION, _
Enter "Southern” in response to Quastion [, below.

[Fnone applies, answer question €2 tothe ight,  sesdls

C.2, Is eithar of tha following true? If so, check the one that applies:
D 2 o7 more answers in Column D

[:] only T answer i Column D and no answers i Cofumn €

Your case will initially be assigned to the
EASTERN DIVISION,
Entér "Eastern” in response to Question D, below.

i none applies, go ta the box below, é

Your case will initially be assigned to the v

WESTERN GIVISION,

Entar "Western™ in response to Question [ below,

Question Dy fnitial Division? - -

INITi@l;DIVlS}ﬂN-Iﬂ AGD:

Enter the Initial division determined by Quiestion A, B,vof C ahove: W

_ Wastern

V-1 1113)

CIvIL COVER SHEET

Page 2 of3
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNMIA

CIVIE COVER SHEET
X{a). IDENTICAL CASES: Has this action been previously filed in this court and dismissed, remanded or closed? NO |:] YES
If yes, list case number(s);
I{{b}. RELATED CASES: Have any cases been previously filed [ this court that are related to the present case? NO ] ves

I yas, Hst case number(s)

Civilcases are deemad related if a previously filed case and the present case:

(Check all boxes that apply} [ ] A. Arise from the same ar closely related transactions, happenings, orevents; or
;:] B. Call for datermination of the same or substantialiy related or similar questions of law and fact; or
[:] €. For other reasons would entail substantial dupiication of labor If haard by different pudges; or

[:] 0. Involve the same patent, trademark or copyright, and one of the factors identified above in a, b or calso is present.

X. SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY
(OR SELF-REPRESENTED LITIGANT): /S/Jonathan Shub DATE: 2/19/2014

Nuotive to Counsel/Parties: The (V=71 (JS-44) Civil Cover Sheet and the information cortained herein neither replace nor supplement the flling and sarvice of pleadings or
other papers as réquired by faw. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the Wnlted States In Septémber 1974, 1s requlred pursuant to Lacal Rule 3-1 is not filed
but is used by the Clerk of the Caurt forthe purpose of statistics, venue and inftiating the civil docket sheet. {For more detalted instructions; see separate instructions sheet),

K&y to Statistical codes relating to Social Secu rltj Cases;

Nature of Sult Code  Abbreviation Substantive Statement of Cause of Action
Al elaims for bealth Insurante banefits (Medicare) undef Title 18, Part A, of the Social Security Act,.as amanded, Also,
861 HiA include claims by hospltals, skilled nursing facllities, ate, for certification as providers of services under the program,
(42 LL5S.C. 1935FF (b
862 Bl ;I? c)laims fur "Black Lung” benefits under Title 4, Part B, of the Fadaral Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969, (30 1.5.C.
23
862 DIWe Alt clairns filed by insured warkers for disability Insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended; plus
all claims flled for ¢hitd's insurance banefits based on disability. {42 U.S.C. 405 (g))
863 DI All claims filed for widows of widowers insurance benefits based on disability under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as
R amended. (42 L1.5.C. 405 (g))
All claims for supplemental security Income payments based upon disability fited under Title 16 of the Social Secutity Act, as
864 55D amended.
865 RE( All'cleims for retirement (ald age) and survivars benefits under Thie 2 of the Social Security Act, as amendad.
{42 USC. 405 {g) :

CV-T1{11113) CIVIL COVER SHEET Page 3of 3
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Jonathan N. Shub (SBN 237708)

Scott Alan George (Pro Hae Vice Application Forthcoming
Parvin K. Aminolroaya (Pro Hac Vice Application Forthcoming)
SEEGER WEISS LLP

1515 Market Street, Suite 1380

Philadelphia, PA 19102

Phone: (215) 564-2300

Fax: (215) 851-8029

ishub@seegerweiss.com

SgeoTEClUseeReIW eSS, com
paminolroaya@seegerweiss.com

Alyson Oliver L

(Pro Hac Vice Application Forthcoming)
Nick Suciu Il

(Pro Hac Vice Application Forthcoming)
OLIVER LAW GROUP PC

950 W. University Drive, Ste. 200
Rochester, M1 48307

Telephone: (248) 327-6556

Facsimile: (248) 436-3385
notifications@eliverlg.com
www.legalactionnow.com

Jeffrey A. Leon (Pro Hac Vice Application Forthcoming)
COMPLEX LITIGATION GROUP

513 Central Avenue

Suite 300

Highland Park, Illinois 60035

Telephone: (847) 433-4500

Facsimile; (847) 433-2500

jeff@complexlitgroup.coin

Bassma Zebib (SBN 276452)
LAW.OFFICE OF BASSMA ZEBIB
811 Wilshire Blvd, Ste. 1708

Los Angeles, CA 90017

Telephone: (310) 920-7037
zebiblaw@gmail com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Souzan Aourout
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Souzan AOlerllt CASE NUMBER
CV14-1289-RSWL(FFMx)

PLAINTIFF(S)

Pepsico, Inc NOTICE TO PARTIES OF
COURT-DIRECTED ADR PROGRAM

DEFENDANT(S)

NOTICE TO PARTIES:

It is the policy of this Court to encourage settlement of civil litigation when such is in the best
interest of the parties. The Court favors any reasonable means, including alternative dispute resolution
(ADR), to accomplish this goal. See Civil L.R. 16-15. Unless exempted by the trial judge, parties in all
civil cases must participate in an ADR process before trial. See Civil L.R. 16-15.1.

The district judge to whom the above-referenced case has been assigned is participating in an
ADR Program that presumptively directs this case to either the Court Mediation Panel or to private
mediation. See General Order No. 11-10, §5. For more information about the Mediation Panel, visit
the Court website, www.cacd.uscourts.gov, under "ADR."

Pursuant to Civil L.R. 26-1(c), counsel are directed to furnish and discuss with their clients the
attached ADR Notice To Parties before the conference of the parties mandated by Fed.R.Civ.P. 26().
Based upon the consultation with their clients and discussion with opposing counsel, counsel must
indicate the following in their Joint 26(f) Report: 1) whether the case is best suited for mediation with a
neutral from the Court Mediation Panel or private mediation; and 2) when the mediation should
occur. See Civil L.R, 26-1(c).

At the initial scheduling conference, counsel should be fully prepared to discuss their preference
for referral to the Court Mediation Panel or to private mediation and when the mediation should
occur. The Court will enter an Order/Referral to ADR at or around the time of the scheduling
conference.

Clerk, U. S. District Court

February 20, 2014 By C. Sawyer
Date Deputy Clerk

ADR-08 (05/13) NOTICE TO PARTIES OF COURT-DIRECTED ADR PROGIAM




Case3:14-cv-01105-WHO Documentl Filed02/20/14 Page34 of 35

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE TO PARTIES: COURT POLICY ON SETTLEMENT
AND USE OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR})
Counsel are required to furnish and discuss this Notice with their clients.

Despite the efforts of the courts to achieve a fair, timely and just outcome in all cases, litigation
has become an often lengthy and expensive process. For this reason, it is this Court's policy to
encotirage parties to attempt to settle their disputes, whenever possible, through alternative dispute
resolution (ADR).

ADR can reduce both the time it takes to resolve a case and the costs of litigation, which can be
substantial. ADR options include mediation, arbitration {binding or non-binding), neutral evaluation
(NE), conciliation, mini-trial and fact-finding. ADR can be either Court-directed or privately
conducted.

The Court's ADR Program offers mediation through a panel of qualified and impartial attorneys
who will encourage the fair, speedy and economic resolution of civil actions. Panel Mediators each
have at least ten years of legal experience and are appointed by the Court. They volunteer their
preparation time and the first three hours of a mediation session. This is a cost-effective way for parties
to explore potential avenues of resolution.

This Court requires that counsel discuss with their clients the ADR options available and
instructs them to come prepared to discuss the parties' choice of ADR option (settlement conference
before a magistrate judge; Court Mediation Panel; private mediation) at the initial scheduling
conference. Counsel are also required to indicate the client's choice of ADR option in advance of that
conference. See Civil L.R. 26-1(c) and Fed R.Civ.P. 26(f).

Clients and their counsel should carefully consider the anticipated expense of litigation, the
uncertainties as to outcome, the time it will take to get to trial, the time an appeal will take if a decision
is appealed, the burdens on a client's time, and the costs and expenses of litigation in relation to the
amounts or stakes involved.

With more than 15,000 civil cases filed in the District in 2012, less than 1 percent actually went
to trial. Most cases are settled between the parties; voluntarily dismissed; resolved through Court-
directed or other forms of ADR; or dismissed by the Court as lacking in merit or for other reasons
provided by law.

For more information about the Court's ADR Program, the Mediation Panel, and the profiles of
mediators, visit the Court website, www.cacd.uscourts.gov, under "ADR."

ADR-08 (05/13) NOTICE TO PARTIES OF COURT-DIRECTED ADR PROGRAM
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES JUDGES

This case has been assigned to District Judge Ronald S.W. Lew and the assigned

Magistrate Judge is Frederick F. Mumm

The case number on all documents filed with the Court should read as follows:

CV14-1289-RSWL({FFMXx)

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central District of

California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related motions.

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge.

Clerk, U. S. District Court

February 20, 2014 : By C.Sawyer
Date Deputy Clerk
NOTICE TO COUNSEL

A copy of this notice must be served with the summons and complaint on all defendants (if a removal action is

filed, a copy of this notice must be served on all plaintiffs).

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location:

Western Division ' [ Southern Division [[] Eastern Division
312 N. Spring Street, G-8 411 West Fourth St., Ste 1053 3470 Twelfth Street, Room 134
Los Angeles, CA 90012 Santa Ana, CA 92701 Riverside, CA 92501

Failure to file at the proper location will result in your documents being returned to you.

CV-18(08/13) NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES JUDGES






